
MOORE COUNTY AIRPORT AUTHORITY MEETING AGENDA 
TUESDAY, AUGUST 14TH, 2018 

PUBLIC MEETING BEGINS AT 10:00 A.M. 

(TO ATTEND ELECTRONICALLY: CONTACT AIRPORT ADMINISTRATIVE ASSISTANT FOR INSTRUCTIONS) 

  CLOSED SESSION (IF ANY) BEGINS AT 9:30 A.M. 

CALL TO ORDER 

A. OPEN SESSION

B. CLOSED SESSION

1. I hereby move that, pursuant to [N.C.G.S. 143-318.11(a)(5)], the board meet in closed session for the

purpose of establishing or instructing the staff or agent concerning the negotiations of the amount of

compensation or other terms of an employment contract.

C. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

D. ADDITIONAL AGENDA ITEMS (IF ANY):

1. ______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

2. ______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

E. CONFLICT OF INTEREST INQUIRY 

F. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

G. APPROVAL OF PREVIOUS MEETING MINUTES 

1. Moore County Airport Authority Meeting Minutes, July 10th, 2018.

H. PUBLIC COMMENTS – (See back page for Procedures)

I. PRESENTATIONS/GUEST SPEAKERS/OATHS OF OFFICE 

1. Oath of Office: Finance Officer - Airport Authority Secretary/Treasurer, Mike Jones.

2. Status report provided by Airport Engineers, Talbert & Bright Inc.

J. PUBLIC HEARING 

(None) 
K. REPORT INQUIRIES (IF ANY)

1. Manager’s Report
2. Financial Summary
3. Operation’s Report

L. UNFINISHED BUSINESS

1. Sandhills Community College Pilot Program Update/Scholarship Discussion.
2. Consider request to remove provision of the 2006 Harris Teeter Shopping Center Deed of

Easement.

M. NEW BUSINESS 

1. Review and consider the revised 2018/2019 Budget Ordinance.
2. Formal request to approve a Budget Amendment to carry forward funds previously approved for an

Airport Project that began in the last fiscal year and was completed in the current fiscal year.
3. Formal request to reclassify and approve a Budget Amendment for the two current Part-Time

Customer Service Representative (CSR) Resource positions to Part-Time CSR w/partial benefits.

N. ADDITIONAL AGENDA ITEMS ADDRESSED  (IF ANY):

1. ______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

2. ______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

O. ANNOUNCEMENTS/COMMENTS 

1. Announce the Moore County Airport Authority meeting will be held at 10:00 a.m. in the Moore County
Airport Terminal Conference Room on Tuesday, September 11th, 2018.

P. ADJOURNMENT 



PROCEDURES FOR PUBLIC COMMENTS 

MOORE COUNTY AIRPORT AUTHORITY 

 

 
The Moore County Airport Authority is committed to allowing members of the public an opportunity to offer 

comments and suggestions. All comments and suggestions addressed to the Authority during the Public Comment 

Period shall be subject to the following procedures: 

 

 

1. The comment period will be limited to items not listed on the current Agenda. Comments related to any current 

agenda items will be heard at such time the Authority addresses the agenda item during the meeting and prior 

to any formal vote being held by the Authority. 

 
2. Any individual that wishes to speak will have five (5) minutes to make his/her remarks. Speakers are asked 

to state their identity for record before beginning remarks. 

 
3. The Authority reserves the right to respond to public comments, but is not required. 

 
4. Speakers will be courteous in their language and presentation. Matters or comments which are harmful, 

discriminator y or embarrassing to any citizens, official or employee shall not be allowed. Speaker must be 

respectful and courteous in their remarks and must refrain from personal attacks and the use of profanity. 

 
5. Speakers who have prepared written remarks or supporting documents are encouraged to leave a copy of such 

remarks and documents with staff 

 
6. Speakers shall not discuss any of the following: 

a. Matters which concern the candidacy of any person seeking public office, including the candidacy 

of the person addressing the Board; 

b. Political Issues; 

c. Closed Session matters. 
 

 

 

 

 

Adopted, this the 8
th day of November, 2016 

 
 

 
 

 
 



 
~ 1 ~ 

 

        
 

Moore County Airport Authority 
Tuesday, July 10th, 2018 

 Public Meeting – 10:00 a.m. 
Minutes 

 

 

The Moore County Airport Authority Meeting began at 10:00 a.m. on July 10th, 2018 in the Moore 

County Airport Terminal Conference Room.     

 

Authority Members Present:  Tom McPherson, Chairman 

Barry Lerman, Vice Chairman  

Mike Jones, Secretary/Treasurer 

Bob Zschoche, Member 

 

Authority Members Absent:  Pat Corso, Member                

 

Authority Members Present 

Participating Electronically:                (None) 

 

Staff Present:    Ron Maness, Airport Manager 

     Bobbie Cox, Operations Director 

     Crystal Meyers, Administrative Assistant 

 

Others Present:   Steve Bright, Talbert & Bright, Inc. 
     Phil Greene, Total Flight Solutions 

Charles Mirman 
     Robert Kroll 
     John May, Attorney 
     Bob Klug, Pinehurst Area Realty, Inc. 
     Jack Cramer, Pinehurst Area Realty, Inc. 
     Jim Epting 
     Ed Waters 
 
CALLED TO ORDER     

  
A. Opened Session 

1. Airport Authority Chairman, Tom McPherson, opened public session. 
 

B. Closed Session 
       (None) 

  
C. Pledge of Allegiance was led by Chairman, Tom McPherson. 
 



 
~ 2 ~ 

 

D. Additional Agenda Items 
(None) 

 
E. Conflict of Interest Inquiry was made by Chairman, Tom McPherson. 

(None) 
 

F. Approval of Agenda Presented 
1. Authority members reviewed the proposed meeting Agenda.   

 
o By consensus, the four Authority Members present approved the Agenda as 

presented. 
 
G. Approval of Previous Meeting Minutes 

1. Moore County Airport Authority Meeting Minutes Presented: June 12th, 2018. 
 

o Upon motion made by Secretary, Mike Jones, and seconded by Vice Chairman, 
Barry Lerman, the Authority voted 4 to 0 to approve the June 12th, 2018 Moore 
County Airport Authority Meeting Minutes. 

 
H. Public comments 

(None)  
 

I. Presentations/Guest Speakers  
1. Attorney, John May, provided an update on the request to move forward with provisions 

of the 2006 Deed of Easement between Moore County Airport Authority and Pinehurst 
Area Realty, Inc.   
 

o After consideration, the Authority indicated a review by the Airport Attorney and 
the Airport Engineers would be conducted and a decision will be made at the 
August 2018 Airport Authority Meeting.   

 
2. Steve Bright, Talbert & Bright, provided an update on the bid meeting for the Airfield 

Storm Drain & Pipe Rehabilitation Project and recommended STEP Construction be 
awarded the project in the amount of $ 1,203,138.00. 
 

o Upon motion made by Secretary, Mike Jones, and seconded by Vice Chairman, 
Barry Lerman, the Authority voted 4 to 0 to award the Airfield Storm Drain & 
Pipe Rehabilitation Project to STEP Construction in the amount of $1,203,138.00.    

 
J. Public Hearing 

(None) 
 

K. Report Inquiries 
1. The Authority members reviewed/heard the following reports listed below:  

 
o Financial Report:  Airport Manager, Ron Maness, reported: 

- The end of year close out was positive.  Expenses were approximately 
$33K higher than revenue due to necessary capital expenditures, such as 
grant matches, repairs, and Airport improvements. 

- A slight decline in Fuel Sales for the year, but an increase of sales for the 
month of June.   
 

o Manager’s Report:  Airport Manager, Ron Maness, reported:   



 
~ 3 ~ 

 

- A few concerns have been identified with the Independent Fee Estimate 
for the Master Plan and discussions are underway with Jared Penny, 
NCDOA & Talbert & Bright to address those issues.  The next scheduled 
conference call is scheduled for Wednesday, July 11th at 2pm. 

- The STI projects projected to begin ahead of schedule have been 
identified and steps are being made to move forward.  An update will be 
provided following the conference all on Wednesday.   

- On an article in the Sunday, June 30, 2018 Pilot Newspaper, authored by 
Robert “Skip” Gebhardt, and indicated a rebuttal article was drafted by 
base customer, Charles “Chip” Mirman, and was submitted to The Pilot 
Newspaper for print.    

- The terminal building roof repairs were underway.  
- The concrete repair is underway at Hangar #12. 
- CSR, Ed Zerbe, has resigned and recruitment to fill the position is in place.  
- Grumpkins Hot Dogs has been serving every Monday and Friday at the 

Airport and has been very successful thus far.     
- Steve Merritt, an Aviation Attorney, is hosting A General Aviation 

Minimum Standards Training Seminar in Charlotte, NC on July 19th that 
he will be attending and will have recommendations for the Authority at 
the August 2018 Authority Meeting. 

- The re-establishment of the Civil Air Patrol is still underway.  
- The Boy Scout Observation Area Project is nearing completion. 
- A meeting has been scheduled for August 8th, 2018 with the Moore 

County Schools Superintendent and Airport Representatives, regarding 
the STEM Program and integration of Aviation into early Education. 

 
o Operations Report: 

- (No inquires) 
 

L. Unfinished Business 
1. Discussion ensued regarding support for the Sandhills Community College Pilot 

Program and the options available.  Considerations included incentives, discounts, 
and/or scholarships.   
 

o Airport Manager, Mr. Maness, recommended the Authority match Total Flight 
Solutions in reducing the hourly rate by $10.00 per hour for the first 10 hours, 
equaling $20.00 per hour rate reduction to Sandhills Community College 
Students.  By consensus, the Authority was in favor of the hourly reduction.  A 
final decision was not made at this time.   
 

o Total Flight Solutions, Phil Greene, reported a scheduled meeting to be held later 
today with Sandhills Community College to discuss their commitment to TFS and 
reiterate the Airport and TFS commitment to the College. 

 
M. New Business 

1. The Authority considered hosting an AOPA Fly-In in 2020. 
 

o After consideration, the Authority agreed the Moore County Airport does not, or 
is unable, to meet the minimum requirements to be considered for the Event and 
will not apply to host the event at this time.    

 
N. Additional Agenda Items 

(None) 



 
~ 4 ~ 

 

 
O. Announcements/Comments 

1. The Moore County Airport Authority meeting will be held Tuesday, August 14th, 2018 at 
10:00 a.m. in the Terminal Conference Room at the Moore County Airport. 
 

P. Adjournment 
1. Chairman, Tom McPherson adjourned Open Session. 

 
 
 
 
_________________________________________________ 

                   Thomas McPherson, Chairman 
                   Moore County Airport Authority                                                          

 
 
 

         ________________________________________________ 
             Mike Jones, Secretary 

                                            Moore County Airport Authority 



Tom,  
 
Mike Jones has to take the oath for his position as finance officer.  The LGBFCA stipulates the following: 
 
You can ask that he repeat after you: 
 
“I, Mike Jones, do solemnly swear that I will support and maintain the Constitution and laws of the 
United States, and the Constitution and laws of North Carolina not inconsistent therewith, and that I will 
faithfully discharge the duties of my office as finance officer, so help me God.” 
 
 
 



Expense and Revenue Comparison

EXPENSES JULY 2018 JULY 2017
Operating Expenses - Administration 78,327.49 20,444.43
Operating Expenses - Facility Maintenance 3,494.11 3,142.79
Operating Expenses - Line & Customer Service 113,207.06 86,690.06

Total Expenses 195,028.66 110,277.28

REVENUES
FUEL: JET-A 102,684.47 86,205.04
FUEL: 100LL 30,305.23 24,969.80
HANGAR & FACILITY RENTAL 39,487.71 36,090.12
AIRPORT SERVICES 5,412.40 4,688.75
SHOP KSOP 109.93 0.00
OTHER 1,479.50 144.24

Total Revenues 179,479.24 152,097.95

NET PROFIT (LOSS) (15,549.42) 41,820.67



MOORE COUNTY AIRPORT

FINANCE MEASURABLES

Jul-18
 

Fuel Gallons Sold 2018 2017
100LL Gallons July 6,959 5,972 16.5%

 Jet A Gallons July 26,162 25,389 3.0%
Total Gallons July 33,121 31,361 5.6%

100LL Gallons YTD (July) 6,959 5,972 16.5%

Jet Gallons YTD (July) 26,162 25,389 3.0%

Total Gallons YTD (July) 33,121 31,361 5.6%

Historical

FY2009 31,995

FY2010 25,954

FY2011 25,627

FY2012 21,522

FY2013 26,157

FY2014 26,092  

FY2015 23,451

FY2016 31,013

FY2017 31,361

FY2018 33,121

Landings 2018 2017  

Total Landings July 521 588 -11.4%

Total Landings YTD 521 588 -11.4%

Fuel Gallons Pumped YTD (July)

0

5,000

10,000

15,000

20,000

25,000

30,000

35,000

FY2009 FY2010 FY2011 FY2012 FY2013 FY2014 FY2015 FY2016 FY2017 FY2018

Fuel Gallons YTD by Year 



August 2018 Operations Report: 
 
 
1. On July 17th Roy Birch finished removing and pouring the concrete at T-Hangar # 12. 

 
2. On July 23rd Grimie Roofing fixed all the roof leaks in the administration wing and the one 

over the Hertz counter. They also resealed the gutters on both buildings. 
 
3. On July 23rd Carl repaired a roof leak around the night light on T-Hangar # 50. 

 
4. On July 24th I ordered a new caster wheel for T-Hangar # 24. One of them had seized up 

and only rolled part of the time. 
 

5. On July 30th Grimie Roofing was advised that new leaks were discovered and they were 
asked to come out and fix the new ones. 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 















July 31, 2018 Page 1 
 

MOORE COUNTY AIRPORT AUTHORITY 

2018-2019 

BUDGET ORDINANCE 

AMENDMENT NO. 1 

 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE MOORE COUNTY AIRPORT AUTHORITY: 

 

SECTION 1. REVENUES.   It is estimated that the revenues and fund balances of the Airport Enterprise Fund 640, as listed below, will 

be available during the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2018, and ending June 30, 2019, to meet the appropriations as set forth in 

Section 2.  All fees, commissions, and sums paid to or collected by any fund by any Moore County Airport Authority official, officer, 

or agent for any service performed by such official, officer, or agent in his official capacity shall inure to the benefit of the Airport 

and become Airport funds. 

 

Airport Enterprise Budget Summary 

REVENUES 

Facility Rental Income $           481,863 
Line/CSR           2,056,536  
Miscellaneous Income                  5,500 
Interest Income 8,000 
Retained Earnings 249,692 
  
Total Revenues $        2,801,591 

 

 

SECTION 2.  APPROPRIATIONS.   The following Airport Enterprise Fund amounts are appropriated to the Airport Manager for the 

operations of the Moore County Airport and its departments for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2018 and ending June 30, 2019. 

Other fund amounts as set forth in Sections 1 through 2 are also appropriated as presented in this section.   



July 31, 2018 Page 2 
 

In administering the programs authorized under this Ordinance, the Airport Manager is authorized to make transfers pursuant to 

Section 3. 

 

The Airport Manager or his designee is hereby authorized to execute the necessary agreements within funds included in the Budget 

Ordinance for the following purposes: 

1.  Leases of normal and routine business equipment. 

2.  Consultant, professional or maintenance service agreements. 

3. Purchase of apparatus, supplies and materials where formal bids are not required by law. 

4. Construction or repair work where formal bids are not required by law. 

5. Routine software maintenance and equipment maintenance agreements. 

 

The Finance Administrator is hereby designated as the Finance Officer for pre-audit functions pursuant to Chapter 159 of the North 

Carolina General Statutes. 

Airport Enterprise Budget Summary 

EXPENDITURES 

Administration 503,346 
Facilities Maintenance                    204,781 
Line/CSR                 1,768,464 
Grant Matches 225,000 
Capital Outlay                    100,000 
  
Total Expenditures $           $2,801,591 

 

 

SECTION 3.  AUTHORIZED TRANSFER OF APPROPRIATION. 

The Airport Manager is hereby authorized to transfer appropriations within a fund as contained herein under the following 

conditions: 

 



July 31, 2018 Page 3 
 

1. The Airport Manager may transfer amounts between objects of expenditures within a fund without limitation and without a 

report being required. 

2. The Airport Manager may sign and approve all expenditures up to $15,000; all expenditures over $15,000 must be co-signed 

by either the Chairman or other appointed Moore County Airport Authority member. 

 

SECTION 4. RESERVES FOR ENCUMBRANCES.   

 

The reserves for encumbrances as of June 30, 2018 and carry-over appropriations representing prior commitments as of that 

date shall be re-appropriated pursuant to NCGS 159-13 to the Airport within the various funds, unless excluded by the Airport 

Manager or Airport Authority. Expenditures against these encumbrances may be made during fiscal year 2018-2019 as the previous 

commitments are satisfied. 

 

SECTION 5. PROCEDURES.   

 

(Reserved for procedure modifications) 

 

SECTION 6.  This Ordinance shall become effective July 1, 2018. 

 

 Adopted this the 14th day of August, 2018. 

         ______________________________________________ 

         Thomas McPherson, Chairman 

         Moore County Airport Authority 

 

______________________________ 

Michael Jones, Secretary/Treasurer 

Moore County Airport Authority 





This instrument has been preaudited in 

the manner required by the Local
Government Budget and Fiscal Control Act.

Finance Officer

DEPARTMENT: Airport

DEPARTMENT HEAD SIGNATURE:

DATE: 07/31/18

LINE ACCOUNT CURRENT INCREASE NEW
ITEM NUMBER BUDGET (DECREASE) BUDGET

Building Maintenance & Repair 64044080 53500 100,000 11,300 111,300

Appr Fund Balance Encumbrances 64019000 32951 0 (11,300) (11,300)

100,000 0 100,000

EXPLANATION: Extend two contracts and purchase orders so that work can be completed in

FY 2018-19:

PO 18001561 Roy G. Burch, Jr. $5,500 replace concrete door track in T-Hangar #12

PO 18001655 Grieme Roofing Co. Inc. $5,800 repair roof leaks in General Aviation building

This instrument has been approved by the

Airport Authority as requested.

Rev. 2/10

Chairman




	August 14, 2018 Agenda Packet
	Agenda August 14, 2018

	R.Maness revision 8-14-18
	August 14, 2018 Agenda Packet
	August 14, 2018 Agenda Packet
	Minutes July 10, 2018
	Finance Officer Oath


	Reimbursement Resolution Master Plan
	Authority Financial Report Template FY2019
	Authority SUMMARY

	August 14, 2018 Agenda Packet
	August 14, 2018 Agenda Packet
	July 2018 Measurables
	2018 08 Operations Report
	Harris Teeter Deed of Easement


	budget ordinance proposed revision with $15K
	August 14, 2018 Agenda Packet
	August 14, 2018 Agenda Packet
	AirportAmendedAgreement Grieme Roofing
	Budget Carryforward Building Maintenance
	Budget Amendment - CSR Salary





